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Thursday 12 May 2011
COMPLAINT REGARDING THE MAKANA MUNICIPALITY AND SPEAKER MISIWE MADINDA IN RELATION TO THE PROMOTION OF ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT 2000

This complaint concerns (i) the maladministration of the Makana Municipality and (ii) the improper prejudice of undue delay suffered due to the conduct of Speaker M Madinda in view of the Promotion of Access to Information Act 2 of 2000 (PAIA). 

SAHA submitted three requests to access information in terms of PAIA on 24 June 2010 to the office of Ms Ntombi Baart as the relevant Municipal Manager (see Attachment A).

On 13 August 2010 an email was sent alerting that office to the fact that a response was still pending and that an internal appeal would be submitted on 18 August 2010 if that office continued with their deemed refusal. In response, Ms Baart attached SAHA into an email on 22 August 2010 to one ‘Thabiso’ (no surname has ever been provided) requesting that he follow up on these requests (see Attachment B).

In spite of Ms Baart’s direct instructions, SAHA heard nothing further and on 08 September 2010 informed that office as to such while resending copies of the requests for their convenience. Ms Baart again responded by attaching us into an email to Thabiso on 17 September asking for him to immediately provide us with any justifiable reason for this failure to respond, as well as informing him that a failure to act in 24hours would be viewed in a serious light (see Attachment C).

In spite of all these express demands of the Municipal Manager, by 7 October 2010 we had still not been informed of anything and an internal appeal was submitted to the relevant authority, Speaker Misiwe Madinda on the basis of this deemed refusal (see Attachment D). As a courtesy, SAHA informed Ms Baart of this internal appeal.
Then on 7 October a response was finally received from Thabiso, apparently only as a reaction to our internal appeal. He attempted to contact the Support Officer on her private number even after being informed she was on leave and in spite of ignoring all her previous attempts to communicate with the office up till that point. In an email communication he indicated that he never received the request, in spite of the fact that it had been sent twice, including once directly to the very email address he was communicating from in the email of 08 September 2010. He then, in a somewhat informal manner, asked a series of questions about the nature of application while seemingly unaware of several relevant sections of the PAIA (directly ignoring in particular section 11(3)). In response, SAHA tried to address all the issues in an extensive response on 11 October 2011. However, again in an informal manner and this time with unnecessary rudeness, Thabiso responded on 11October 2011 while still failing to address the Act in question. SAHA then attempted to withdraw itself from any further direct communication that did not relate directly to the office addressing its obligations in terms of the Act (see Attachment E for this series of emails).

In spite the fact that all communications indicated that the offices of both the Speaker and Municipal Manager were aware of the internal appeal as suggested by Thabiso’s communication, by 11 November 2011 SAHA had still not received any further communication and fax was sent to the office of the Speaker informing them that a response should have been forthcoming (see Attachment F).
Again, in spite of this, by 06 December 2010 still no communications had been received and a letter was sent to both the Office of the Speaker and the Office of the Municipal Manager requesting any kind of response, as it was clear from the previous communications by Thabiso that legal counsel had been consulted (see Attachment G).

On 04 March 2011, in order as per the Public Protector recommendations to try and attempt to resolve the complaint with the public entity, SAHA sent a copy of a draft of this complaint to both Speaker Madinda and Ms Baart to attempt to give them a further opportunity to address our application. However, no communication ahs been sent in response (see Attachment H).
Despite waiting patiently SAHA has still never received a substantive response. However, not only have SAHA done all within their powers to assist the Municipality, they have been treated with direct disdain and disrespect by its employees. No attempt to apologise for the unprofessional conduct of one particular employee has ever been made, in spite of the fact that several superiors appear to have been attached into the relevant communications. Further, this discourtesy was in spite of the fact that it was the Municipality that was failing in terms of its legislated obligations – SAHA were merely attempting to exercise their rights in terms of that legislation, while providing the Municipality with as much additional information and assistance as possible. Tragically, this disrespect seems to exist within the departments of the Municipality itself, with several of the Municipal Manager’s instructions being flagrantly disregarded – in spite of the fact that the Municipal Manager is the only member of the Municipality that has thus far directly acknowledged their obligations in terms of PAIA.

SAHA are acting in the interest of a number of community members who have direct interest in the information sought, and who cannot afford legal recourse to the courts. The Municipality is not only violating their right to access information, but is not even treating them with the dignity of affording them with any kind of response which would better able them to engage with local government. SAHA has still to receive a genuine response regarding the maladministration and improper conduct of the Makana Municipality and, in particular, Speaker Madinda as the relevant authority. 

In respect of Sections 110 and 114 of Chapter 9 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa Act No. 200 of 1993 SAHA firmly believes this matter requires investigation by the Public Protector:

· As recollected in the above summary of events (and corresponding Attachments) SAHA has made countless attempts to urge the Municipality to comply with its obligations in terms of PAIA.

· SAHA has volunteered assistance in interpreting sections of PAIA that an employee misunderstood, with such assistance being met with an unprofessional and disrespectful response.

· At no point has the Speaker made any attempt to resolve this serious issue or communicate with SAHA in anyway. 

· SAHA will consider its option of approaching the courts, but can only do so in terms of the deemed refusal. It is submitted that there has been a direct acknowledgment by the Municipality that they have sought legal opinion and there is no good reason why SAHA should be deprived of that opinion, as it could be used to properly determine their prospects of success should they exercise their right utilise such recourse. 
· Outside the general obligation to respond in terms of the Act, it is submitted further that the general behavior of the Municipality in how it has sought to respond to these requests has been unjustifiably discourteous and dismissive.

· SAHA is concerned too that direct instructions given within the Municpality, which if followed would have provided SAHA with relief, have been continually ignored.
SAHA relates to Sections 110 to 114 of the Constitution (Chapter 9), which provide for the establishment of the office of the Public Protector in order to investigate matters and to protect the public against matters such as maladministration in connection with the affairs of government. 

SAHA believes the Public Protector thus has a duty to investigate the pertinent matters of (i) the maladministration of the Makana Municipality and (ii) the improper prejudice of undue delay suffered due to the conduct of Speaker M Madinda in view of the Promotion of Access to Information Act 2 of 2000 (PAIA).
I hope this letter has provided sufficient information to allow the Office of the Public Protector to proceed with its investigations. Please do not hesitate to contact me should you require any further details. 

Please state the above Reference Number (0022/MAK/2010) in all future correspondence. 

I look forward to hearing from you soon.

Yours sincerely,

Gabriella Razzano
Freedom of Information Programme
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